EL TEJON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
MEASURE D GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Bond Committee Meeting of June 16, 2025
to be held at 9:00AM
at Room 1 of Frazier Park Elementary School
El Tejon Unified School District
3149 San Carlos Trail
Frazier Park, California 93225

AGENDA

1. Call to Order — Acting Chairperson

2.  Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum — Acting Chairperson

3. Public Comment — Any member of the public attending this meeting may directly address the
Committee on any item of interest to the public with respect to the Measure D GOB Proceeds.
The Chairperson will ask if any members of the public wish to address the Committee, and if
so, the member of the public shall raise his/her hand and, when called upon, give their name,

and then make their statement. Members of the public will be given up to 3 minutes to
address the Committee.

4. Request Approval of Citizens Oversight Committee meeting minutes of June 26, 2024.

5.  Update on Measure D Bond projects:
A. 2023-24 Prop 39 Bond Audit
B. Status of Current Projects

C. Funding/Expenditure Update (through 5/31/2025)
6. Committee items requested for next scheduled meeting.
7.  Adjourn

[Note: As required pursuant to Education Code Section 15280, the minutes of this meeting will be posted on the
district’s internet website.]



EL TEJON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
MEASURE D GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Minutes — June 26, 2024

1. Call to Order — The June 26, 2024, meeting was called to order by Guadalupe Martinez at 9:04am.

2. Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum — Guadalupe Martinez, Anita Anderson, Phil Wallace

3. Public Comment — There was no public comment.

passed 3-0.

Approve and Adopt Minutes from meeting October 26, 2022 — Anita Anderson 1%, Phil Wallace 2" motion —

5. Update on Measure D Bond Projects: Updates/Handouts presented by Vanessa Romero:

2021-22 Prop 39 Bond Audit

2022-23 Prop 39 Bond Audit

Approval of CBOC Annual Report for 2022-23
Approval of CBOC Annual Report for 2023-24
Status of Current Projects

Project Expenses

6. Committee items requested for next scheduled meeting:
e Provide an update report to the community regarding the projects that have been completed.

7. Adjourn at 10:20 AM.

[Note: As required pursuant to Education Code Section 15280, the minutes of this meeting will be posted on the District’s internet website]



El Tejon Unified School District
County of Kern

Lebec, California

June 30, 2024

Proposition 39
Election of 2018, Series D
General Obligation Bonds

Audit Report
and Performance Audit Report

Certified Public Accountants



El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39
Election of 2018, Series D General Obligation Bonds
Table of Contents

June 30, 2024

Financial Section Page
Independent Auditor’s Report (Financial StatemMent) .........cococveueieieieieiiececeeeeee e 1
Balance Sheet—BuUIlding FUNG ............c.coi et 3
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Building Fund........................ 4
Notes to the FINaNCial State@MENTS .........ccoivioieiiiiceeee et 5

Other Independent Auditor's Report
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
SEANUGIAS ...ttt ettt b et b et st s bt s bt s et es st ss s s ese e s enns 10

Performance Audit

Independent Auditor’s Report (PErfOrmancCe)..........ccocooiioieoeieeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 13
EXECUTIVE SUMIMAIY ..ottt ettt et e ettt e ettt e et e te et e ete et e eaeeteeaeeeaeeaseereenseesean 14
Background INFOrmMatioN ..........ccoouiiiiiieiiceee ettt 14
Citizens’ Bond OVversight COMMITLEE ..o 14
(0] T =101 1YL 14
SCOPE OF T AUIL ...ttt ettt ea et seannenn 15
Procedures PErfOrMEd ...........c.oo ittt 15
CONCIUSION <.ttt ettt et ettt ettt et et et et ae et ese et eas et eas et eas et easeseasesnnenn 15

Findings and Recommendations Section
Schedule of Findings and RecomMmENdatioNs ..........c.oooviiiiiiieeiceeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 17
Schedule of Prior AUt FINAINGS ........coiiiioeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 18



Financial Section



LPS

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
El Tejon Unified School District
Lebec, California 93243

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Building Fund of the El Tejon Unified School
District ("the District"), as they pertain to Proposition 39, Election of 2018, Series D, General Obligation
Bonds (the “Bonds”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial
statements, as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the Building Fund of the El Tejon Unified School District, as it pertains to Proposition 39,
Election of 2018, Series D, General Obligation Bonds, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in
financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of El Tejon Unified School District and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

El Tejon Unified School District management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about El Tejon Unified School District's
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

575 E. Locust Ave., Suite 302, Fresno, CA 93720-2928
Phone (559) 438-8740 | Fax (559) 438-8746 | www.Ips.cpa
1



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

° Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of El Tejon Unified School District's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

° Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about El Tejon Unified School District's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Respectfully submitted,

W,%f%

Linger, Peterson & Shrum
Fresno, California
December 10, 2024



El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39
Election of 2018, Series D General Obligation Bonds
Balance Sheet - Building Fund

June 30, 2024

Assets
Cash in County Treasury S 1,142,415
Accounts receivable 10,485
Total Assets S 1,152,900

Liabilities
Accounts payable 706
Total Liabilities 706

Fund Balance (Restricted) S 1,152,194

See Notes to the Financial Statements.



El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39

Election of 2018, Series D General Obligation Bonds

Statement Of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance - Building Fund
June 30, 2024

Revenues
Interest S 44,275
Total Revenues S 44,275

Expenditures

Services and other operating expenditures 454,202
Total Expenditures 454,202
Deficiency of Revenues over Expenditures (409,927)
Fund Balance (Restricted), July 1, 2023 1,562,121
Fund Balance (Restricted), June 30, 2024 S 1,152,194

See Notes to the Financial Statements.



El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39
Election of 2018, Series D General Obligation Bonds
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2024

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

OnJune 5, 2018, the El Tejon Unified School District (the “District”) voters authorized issuance of General
Obligation Bonds for $16,000,000 to be used for financing the renovation, construction and improvement
of District facilities.

The Bond proceeds and uses are accounted for in the District’s Building Fund. The statements presented
are for the Building Fund, as it pertains to Proposition 39, Election of 2018, Series D General Obligation
Bonds (the “Bonds”), and are not intended to be a complete presentation of the District’s financial
position or results of operations.

Accounting Policies

The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies and procedures of the
Department of Education’s California School Accounting Manual. The accounting policies of the District
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA).

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the timing of when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements.

The District accounts for Bond proceeds and expenditures using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; both
measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within one year after
year-end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the
related liability is incurred.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations
for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and
other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are
paid. All encumbrances were liquidated as of June 30, 2024.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



Note 2 - Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2024 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Cash in County Treasury $1,142,415

Cash in County Treasury

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all its cash in the
Kern County Treasury as part of a common investment pool. The fair market value of this investment pool
as of June 30, 2024, as provided by the pool sponsor, was $1,142,415. The District is considered to be an
involuntary participant in the external investment pool. Interest is deposited into participating funds. The
county is restricted by Government Code Section 53635, pursuant to Section 53601, to invest in time
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer’s
investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and
repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

Investments

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California
Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage of Percentage in One
Authorized Investment pool Maturity Portfolio Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker’s Acceptances 180 days None None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years None None
Repurchase Agreements 1year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days None None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years None None
Mutual Funds Not Applicable None None
Money Market Mutual Funds Not Applicable None None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years None None
County Pooled Investment Funds Not Applicable None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Not Applicable None None



Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy.
The schedule below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond
trustees. The schedule also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest
rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Percentage of Percentage in One
Authorized Investment Pool Maximum Maturity Portfolio Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days None None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Money Market Mutual Funds Not applicable None None
Investment Contracts 30 years None None

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by
maturity

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months 13to0 24 25to 60 More Than
Investment Type Amount or Less Months Months 60 Months
County Investment Pool $1,142,415 $1,142,415 S- S- S-

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the District’s investment policy, and the actual rating as of year-end for each
investment type. The column marked “exempt from disclosure” identifies those investment types for
which GASB No. 40 does not require disclosure as to credit risk:

Rating as of Year End

Exempt
Minimum From
Investment Type Amount Legal Rating Disclosure  AAA AA Not Rated
County Investment Pool  $1,142,415 Not Applicable S- S- S- $1,142,415



Disclosures Relating to Fair Value Measurement

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. All the
District’s investments are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

Further, the District holds a position in an external investment pool. The unit of account is each share
held, and the value of the position would be the fair value of the pool’s share price multiplied by the
number of shares held. The government-investor does not “look through” the pool to report a pro rata
share of the pool’s investments, receivables, and payables.

Note 3 - Commitments and Contingencies
General Obligation Bonds

A general election was held on June 5, 2018, at which more than 55% of the persons voting on the
propositions voted to authorize the issuance of $16,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds of the District
to finance real property and improvements to be used in the public education operations of the District.

Arbitrage

As part of tax laws surrounding Tax-Exempt Bonds, investment earnings, with certain adjustments, on
unexpended Bond proceeds are limited to the interest rate paid on the Bond debt. Arbitrage (i.e. excess
investment earnings) is required to be rebated to the federal government every five years for as long as
the Bonds are outstanding. At June 30, 2024, no arbitrage liability was deemed necessary.

Note 4 - Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee

The Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee (the “Committee”) was established to satisfy the accountability
requirements of Proposition 39. The Committee shall confine itself specifically to Bond proceeds
generated under the ballot measure. To carry out its stated purposes, the Committee shall: a) Inform the
public regarding Bond issues; b) Review expenditures to ensure that Bond proceeds are expended only
for the purposes set forth in the ballot measure, and that no Bond proceeds are used for any teacher or
administrative salaries or other operating expenses of the District; and c) Present to the Board, in public
session, an annual written report. The report shall indicate whether the District is in compliance with the
applicable requirements and shall include a summary of the Committee’s proceedings and activities for
the preceding year.

Note 5 - Subsequent Events

The District’'s management evaluated its June 30, 2024 financial statements for subsequent events
through December 10, 2024, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Management
is not aware of any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements.



Other Independent Auditor's Report



LPS

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
El Tejon Unified School District
Lebec, California 93243

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Building Fund of
the El Tejon Unified School District (the “District”), as they pertain to Proposition 39, Election of 2018,
Series D General Obligation Bonds (the “Bonds”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 10, 2024.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as it pertains to the Bonds, to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control as it pertains to the Bonds. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of District’s internal control as it pertains to the Bonds.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the District’s Building Fund financial statements, as it pertains to the Bonds, will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

575 E. Locust Ave., Suite 302, Fresno, CA 93720-2928
Phone (559) 438-8740 | Fax (559) 438-8746 | www.Ips.cpa
10



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s Building Fund financial statements,
as they pertain to the Bonds, are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s Building
Fund internal control or on its compliance as they pertain to the Bonds. This report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the internal control
and compliance of the District’s Building Fund as they pertain the Bonds. Accordingly, this communication
is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

W,%f%

Linger, Peterson & Shrum
Fresno, California
December 10, 2024

11



Performance Audit

12



LPS

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (PERFORMANCE)

Board of Trustees and

Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee
El Tejon Unified School District
Lebec, California 93243

We have conducted a performance audit of the Building Fund of the El Tejon Unified School District (the
“District”), as it pertains to Proposition 39, Election of 2018, Series D General Obligation Bonds (the
“Bonds”), for the year ended June 30, 2024.

We conducted our performance audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion based on our audit
objectives.

Our audit was limited to the objectives listed on Page 14 of this report which includes determining the
District’s compliance with the performance requirements for the Bonds under the applicable provisions
of Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIlIA of the California Constitution and Proposition 39 as they apply to the
Bonds and the net proceeds thereof. Management is responsible for the District’s compliance with those
requirements.

Solely to assist us in planning and performing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of
the internal control of the District to determine if internal controls were adequate to help ensure the
District’s compliance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article
XIIIA of the California Constitution. Accordingly, we do not express any assurance on internal control.

The results of our tests indicated that, in all significant respects, the District expended Bond funds for the
year ended June 30, 2024 only for the specific projects developed by the District’s Board of Trustees and
approved by the voters, in accordance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section
1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution.

Respectfully submitted,

W,%f%

Linger, Peterson & Shrum
Fresno, California
December 10, 2024

575 E. Locust Ave., Suite 302, Fresno, CA 93720-2928
Phone (559) 438-8740 | Fax (559) 438-8746 | www.Ips.cpa
13



Executive Summary

On June 5, 2018, the District voters authorized $16,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds to be used to
finance the renovation, construction and improvement of District facilities, and to pay certain costs of
issuance associated therewith.

Background Information

Election of 2018, Series D Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of $16,000,000, are General Obligation
Bonds issued under provisions of Title 1, Division 1, Part 10, Chapter 1 of the State of California Education
Code, commencing with Section 15100, and pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Trustees of
the District.

The District received authorization for the issuance and sale of not more than an aggregate amount of
$16,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds at elections held on June 5, 2018, by an affirmative vote greater
than the required 55%. As of June 30, 2024, the District has issued $16,000,000 of the authorized total of
$16,000,000 of the Bonds.

Net proceeds of the Bonds are authorized to be used for the acquisition, construction, furnishing and
equipping of District facilities, and to pay certain costs of issuance associated therewith. Net proceeds of
the Bonds are authorized to be used to prepare for future growth and provide facilities that best serve
the students and community, as specified in the projects list.

Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee

The Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee was established to satisfy the accountability requirements of
Proposition 39. The Committee shall confine itself specifically to Bond proceeds generated under the
ballot measure. The Committee consists of a minimum of seven (7) members appointed by the Board of
Trustees from a list of candidates submitting written applications. The members can serve for a term of
two (2) years without compensation, and for no more than two (2) consecutive terms. The members were
chosen based on criteria established by Proposition 39. The Committee is required to meet at least once
ayear. The stated general purposes of the Committee are to: 1) Inform the public; 2) Review expenditures;
and 3) Present to the Board an annual written report.

Objectives

The objectives of our Performance Audit were to:

° Determine the expenditures charged to the District’s Building Fund as they pertain to the
Bonds.

° Determine whether expenditures charged to the Building Fund, as they pertain to the Bonds,
have been made in accordance with the Bond project list approved by the voters.

° Note any incongruities, system weakness, or non-compliance with specific Education Code
Sections related to Bond oversight, and provide recommendations for improvement.

° Provide the District Board and the Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee with a performance
audit as required under the requirements of the California Constitution and Proposition 39.

14



Scope of the Audit

The scope of this performance audit covered the year ended June 30, 2024. The sample of expenditures
tested included all object and project codes associated with the Bond projects. The propriety of
expenditures for capital projects and maintenance projects funded through other state or local funding
sources, other than the proceeds of the Bonds, were not included within the scope of our audit.
Expenditures incurred subsequent to June 30, 2024 were not reviewed or included within the scope of
our audit or in this report.

Procedures Performed

We obtained the general ledger and the project expenditure reports prepared by the District for the year
ended June 30, 2024 for the Building Fund. Within the period audited, we obtained actual invoices and
other supporting documentation for expenditures to ensure compliance with the requirements of
Proposition 39 with regards to the approved Bond projects list. We performed the following procedures:

Reviewed the projects listed to be funded with General Obligation Bond proceeds as set out in the election
documents.

Selected a sample of expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2024, and reviewed Supporting
documentation to ensure that such funds were properly expended on the authorized Bond projects. Our
sample included transactions totaling $171,717, which represented 38% of total expenditures of
$454,202.

We verified that funds from the Building Fund were used for the acquisition, construction, furnishing and
equipping of District facilities constituting the authorized Bond projects. In addition, we verified that funds
held in the Building Fund were not used for salaries unless those salaries were only for work that would
not exist but for the existence of the construction projects as allowable per Opinion 04-110 issued on
November 9, 2004 by the State of California Attorney General.

Noted no incongruities, system weakness, or non-compliance with specific Education Code Sections
related to Bond oversight. Refer to the schedule of findings and recommendations on page 17.

Provided the District Board and the Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee with a performance audit as
required under the requirements of the California Constitution and Proposition 39.

Conclusion

The results of our tests indicated that, in all significant respects, the District has properly accounted for
the expenditures of the funds held in the Building Fund and that such expenditures were made for
authorized Bond projects.

15



Findings and Recommendation Section

16



El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39
Election of 2018, Series D General Obligation Bonds
Schedule Of Findings And Recommendations

June 30, 2024

Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of Auditor’s Report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified? No

Significant deficiency identified not considered to be a material

weakness? None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
Performance Audit
Type of Auditor’s Report issued: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed? No

Financial Audit Findings and Recommendations

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance
related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with paragraphs 5.18
through 5.20 of Government Auditing Standards.

There were no financial audit findings or recommendations.

Performance Audit Findings and Recommendations

There were no performance audit findings or recommendations.

17



El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39
Election of 2018, Series D General Obligation Bonds
Schedule Of Prior Audit Findings

June 30, 2024

Management's Explanation If
Finding/Recommendation Current Status  Not Implemented

There were no prior year findings or questioned cost.

18



E]l Tejon Unitied School District

Sara Haflich
Superintendent

Board President: Stephanie Pope
Board Members: G Rick, Sammanntha Smith, Patrice Barnes & Deborah Turner

December 10, 2024

Linger, Peterson & Shrum
575 E. Locust Ave., Suite 302
Fresno, CA 93720-2928

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the
Building Fund, as they pertain to Proposition 39, Election of 2018, Series D, including the related notes to
the Building Fund financial statements, as they pertain to Proposition 39, Election of 2018, Series D,
General Obligation Bonds, of the El Tejon Unified School District as of and for the year ended June 30,
2024, for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly,
in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered
material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of December 10, 2024, the following
representations were made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated
September 30, 2024, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary
information in accordance with the applicable criteria.

2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP and
include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary government
required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting entity.

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

5) Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable.

4337 Lebec Rd. Lebec, California 93243 (661) 248-6247 Fax: (661) 248-6714
district@el-tejon.k12.ca.us



6) Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans,
transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related
parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

7) Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in
the financial statements.

8) We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, and they have been
posted to the accounts.

9) We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims
or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements, and we have
not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

10) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39,
Election of 2018, Series D, General Obligation Bonds is contingently liable, if any, have been properly
recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided

11) We have provided you with:

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters and
all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources. Among other things,
relevant information may include such matters as ---

e Completeness and availability of all minutes of the meetings of the governing body or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes were not yet prepared.

e Communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in,
financial reporting practices.

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

d) Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and summaries of actions of recent meetings
for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

12) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

13) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

14) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves:

a) Management,

b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or

c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

15) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity’s financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

16) We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered
when preparing financial statements.

17) We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial
statements, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

18) We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.



Government—specific

19) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

20) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to
the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

21) The El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39, Election of 2018, Series D, General Obligation
Bonds has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets, liabilities, or equity.

22) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and legal and contractual
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

23) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely to have
occurred, of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we believe have a
material effect on the financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives,
and any other instances that warrant the attention of those charged with governance.

24) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely to have
occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have
a material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data
significant to the audit objectives.

25) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred,
of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial statements or other
financial data significant to the audit objectives.

26) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered
for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for
reporting on noncompliance.

27) As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related notes. We
acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including that we assume all
management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably within
senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy
and results of the services performed, and accept responsibility for the results of the services. We
have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial statements and related
notes.

28) The El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39, Election of 2018, Series D, General Obligation
Bonds has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets
nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

29) The El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39, Election of 2018, Series D, General Obligation
Bonds has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on
the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

30) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted), and
components of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

31) Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are properly
valued.

32) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the financial
statements, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.



33) Revenues are appropriately classified in the financial statements.

34) Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

35) Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and
are properly disclosed.

36) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and,
if applicable, depreciated.

37) We have appropriately disclosed the El Tejon Unified School District Proposition 39, Election of 2018,
Series D, General Obligation Bonds policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
position is available and have determined that net position is properly recognized under the policy.

38) We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more
than one resource classification is available. That policy determines the fund balance classifications
for financial reporting purposes.

39) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any
significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI.

Signature:

Title:




ANNUAL REPORT OF THE CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
OF El TEJON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-25

RELATING TO MEASURE D

Introduction. The Citizens’ Oversight Committee of El Tejon Unified School District (the
“COC”) was formed pursuant to Measure D for the purpose of actively reviewing and reporting
on the expenditure of Measure D bond proceeds. The COC is required to advise the public,
through at least one report per year, which shall be made available on the District’s website, as to
whether the District is in compliance with Article XIITA of the California Constitution, Measure
D, and the provisions of Education Code Section 15278 and following.

Public Meetings. The COC has met on the following dates and locations:

Meeting Date and Time Meeting Location
6/16/2025 9:00am Frazier Park Elementary School

Each meeting has been in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act), in that the
meetings were formally scheduled with agendas duly posted and noticed and open to the public.
Minutes were taken and, when approved at the subsequent meeting, were posted on the District’s
web page via the link to information relating to Measure D.

District Support. The District has, without spending bond funds, provided the COC with the
administrative support it needs to meet and to perform its review and reporting duties.

Activities

Review of Expenditures. The COC was provided with expenditure reports prepared by the
District at each of its meetings. At each meeting, the COC reviewed the text of Measure D and
the expenditure reports. Members of the COC had the opportunity to ask District personnel
questions regarding the projects and expenditures.

Review of District Bond Audits. In addition, the District provided the COC with a copy of the
annual bond financial audit and performance audit, which are also available to the public on the
District’s website. These audits were provided no later than March 31, with respect to the audit
for the prior fiscal year. [No irregularities or concerns were identified in the audits prepared by
the auditor.] [Any concerns identified in the audits were explained by the District in a written
response provided to the COC within 3 months of the audit.]

Conclusion. Based on the foregoing review of expenditures and other activities, the COC
concludes that bond proceeds spent to date have only been spent for the construction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including furnishing and
equipping of school facilities, or acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities, as
identified in the project list presented to District voters, and as a result the District has complied
with California Constitution Article XIIIA Section (1)(b)(3), the text of Measure and Education
Code 15278 and following. Furthermore, no proceeds were spent on teacher salaries,
administrative salaries, or on operational expenses.

-



sk sk sk sk sk skokosk sk

Approved 6/16/2024 by the Citizens’ Oversight Committee on 6/16/2024.

CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE OF
THE EL TEJON UNIFIED SCHOOL
DISTRICT

BY:

Chairperson

By:

Secretary

The conclusions identified in this Annual Report are to be presented to the District Board at an
open meeting. The Report will also be posted on the District s website.



088 EL TEJON UNI FI ED J88266 DETAI LED GENERAL LEDGER GLD110 L. 00.10 06/11/25 13:48 PAGE 0

FY24- 25 Bond Expenditures 07/ 01/ 2024 TO 05/ 31/ 2025
Account classifications sel ected Fi el d ranges sel ected
FD- RESC- Y- OBJT. SO GOAL- FUNC- STE- T2- TY3- TYP4 FI RANGE
1. 21-72727-72-272722.272-2227-22772-222-22-222- 2277
10. - - - - - - - - -

Sort / Rollup on : FUND

Restricted Fld Nor : 02 RESOURCE

Separation Option : No Separation of Restricted and UnRestricted
Extraction Type : Restricted and UnRestricted

GL Transactions : Approved Only

Account Description: Not Shown

Detail line format : 1 Line(s) per detail

Report prepared : 06/11/2025 13:48:58



088 EL TEJON UNI FI ED

J88266

FY24- 25 Bond Expenditures

07/ 01/ 24
07/ 03/ 24
07/ 18/ 24
07/ 22/ 24
08/ 08/ 24
08/ 12/ 24
09/ 12/ 24
09/ 18/ 24
09/ 20/ 24
09/ 20/ 24
10/ 09/ 24
11/ 13/ 24
11/ 19/ 24
11/ 26/ 24
01/ 03/ 25
01/10/ 25
01/ 23/ 25
02/ 20/ 25
02/ 25/ 25
03/ 07/ 25
03/ 10/ 25
03/ 10/ 25
03/ 14/ 25
04/ 30/ 25

9200

07/ 01/ 24
08/ 08/ 24
09/ 18/ 24
09/ 20/ 24
09/ 20/ 24
10/ 09/ 24

9500

07/ 01/ 24
07/ 03/ 24

DETAI LED GENERAL LEDGER

GLD110

07/ 01/ 2024 TO 05/ 31/ 2025

L. 00.10 06/11/25 13:

48 PAGE

9, 440.
825.

0.
257,003.

4,419.
4,419.

4,419.

1, 646.
14, 904.

706.

706.

1

FUND 121 BUI LDI NG FUND - BOND PROCEEDS

REFERENCE FD- RESC- Y- OBJT. SO GOAL- FUNGC- STE- T2- TY3- TYP4 TRANS DESC VENDOR WARRANT DEBI T
CASH I N COUNTY TREASURY

BALANCE FORWARD 07/ 01/ 2024 0.00
BB- 000000 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 BEG NNI NG BALANCE 1,142, 414. 85
AP- 070324 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 07/ 03/ 2024 0.00
AP-071824 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 07/ 18/ 2024 0. 00
AP- 072224 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 07/22/ 2024 0.00
TF- 970410 21- 0000- 0- 9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 1ST PY 4TH QTR | NTRST@3. 464/ ND 4,419. 33
AP- 081224 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 08/ 12/ 2024 0.00
AP-091224 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 09/ 12/ 2024 0.00
TF-970895 21- 0000- 0- 9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 2nd PY 4TH QTR | NTRST@3. 464/ ND 4,419. 33
TF-970918 21-0000- 0- 9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 2nd PY 4TH QTR | NTRST@3. 464/ MD 0.00
TF-970919 21-0000- 0-9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 4TH QTR 2ND PYM I NT 3. 464% MRD 4,419. 33
TF-971161 21-0000- 0- 9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 23/24 4TH Q | NTRST 3RD PYMN MD 1, 646. 40
AP-111324 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 11/13/2024 0.00
TF- 971635 21-0000- 0- 8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 1ST QTR | NTREST 1PY@. 53/ MD 3,412.79
AP- 112624 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 11/26/ 2024 0.00
AP- 010325 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 01/ 03/ 2025 0.00
AP-011025 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 01/ 10/ 2025 0. 00
TF- 972484 21- 0000- 0- 8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 1ST QT 2ND PY | NTREST@3. 53% MD 4, 266. 00
TF-972807 21-0000- 0-8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 1QTR 3RD PYT | NTREST @. 53% MD 2,172.55
AP- 022525 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 02/ 25/ 2025 0. 00
TF-973080 21-0000- 0- 8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 QTR 1ST PYM I NTREST 3. 56% MRD 2,820. 50
TF- 250025 21-0000- 0- 5800. 00- 0000- 8500- 001- 00- 000- 8527 Bond T4 Correction 9, 440. 95
TF- 250025 21-0000- 0- 5800. 00- 0000- 8500- 001- 00- 000- 8537 Bond T4 Correction 0.00
AP- 031425 21-0000-0-9110. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 03/ 14/ 2025 0.00
TF-973820 21-0000- 0- 8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 2 QTR | NTREST2 PYMNT@. 56% MRD 2,968. 96

TOTAL ACTIVITY 1, 182, 400. 99
ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025 925, 397. 81
ACCOUNTS RECEI VABLE

BALANCE FORWARD 07/01/ 2024 0. 00
BB- 000000 21- 0000- 0-9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 BEG NNI NG BALANCE 10, 485. 06
TF-970410 21-0000- 0- 9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 1ST PY 4TH QTR | NTRST@3. 464/ ND 0. 00
TF-970895 21-0000- 0- 9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 2nd PY 4TH QTR | NTRST@3. 464/ MD 0.00
TF-970918 21-0000- 0- 9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 2nd PY 4TH QTR | NTRST@3. 464/ MD 4,419. 33
TF-970919 21-0000- 0- 9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 4TH QTR 2ND PYM I NT 3. 464% MRD 0.00
TF-971161 21-0000- 0- 9200. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 23/24 4TH Q | NTRST 3RD PYMN MD 0.00

TOTAL ACTIVITY 14,904. 39
ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025 0.00
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

BALANCE FORWARD 07/01/ 2024 0.00
BB- 000000 21-0000- 0-9500. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 BEG NNI NG BALANCE 0. 00
CL- 240008 21-0000- 0-5800. 00- 0000- 8500- 007- 00- 000- 8546 Sitelne Landscape Su 880861 45032151 706. 44

TOTAL ACTIVITY 706. 44
ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025 0.00



088 EL TEJON UNI FI ED

J88266

FY24- 25 Bond Expenditures

07/ 22/ 24
07/ 22/ 24

9791

07/ 01/ 24

9810

07/ 22/ 24

9820

07/ 22/ 24

9840

11/ 19/ 24
01/ 23/ 25
02/ 20/ 25
03/ 07/ 25
04/ 30/ 25

9850

07/ 18/ 24
07/ 22/ 24
08/ 12/ 24
09/ 12/ 24
11/ 13/ 24
11/ 26/ 24
01/ 03/ 25
01/10/ 25

FUND

121

BUI LDI NG FUND -

DETAI LED GENERAL LEDGER

GLD110

07/ 01/ 2024 TO 05/ 31/ 2025

BOND PROCEEDS

REFERENCE FD- RESC- Y- OBJT. SO GOAL- FUNGC- STE- T2- TY3- TYP4

FUND BAL- UNDESI G' UNAPPROP
BALANCE FORWARD 07/ 01/ 2024

AB- 072224 21-0000-0-9790. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000

AB- 072224 21-0000-0-9790. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
TOTAL ACTIVITY

ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025

FUND BAL- BEG NNI NG BALANCE
BALANCE FORWARD 07/01/ 2024

BB- 000000 21-0000-0-9791. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
TOTAL ACTIVITY

ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025

ESTI MATED REVENUES
BALANCE FORWARD 07/ 01/ 2024

AB- 072224 21-0000-0-9810. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
TOTAL ACTIVITY

ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025

APPROPRI ATI ONS
BALANCE FORWARD 07/01/ 2024

AB- 072224 21-0000-0-9820. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
TOTAL ACTIVITY

ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025

REVENUES

BALANCE FORWARD 07/ 01/ 2024

TF- 971635
TF- 972484
TF- 972807
TF- 973080
TF- 973820

21-0000- 0- 8660.
21-0000- 0- 8660.
21-0000- 0- 8660.
21-0000- 0- 8660.
21-0000- 0- 8660.

TOTAL ACTIVITY
ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025

EXPENDI TURES
BALANCE FORWARD 07/ 01/ 2024

AP-071824
AP- 072224
AP- 081224
AP- 091224
AP-111324
AP-112624
AP- 010325
AP-011025

21-0000- 0- 9850.
21-0000- 0-9850.
21-0000- 0- 9850.
21-0000- 0- 9850.
21-0000- 0- 9850.
21-0000- 0- 9850.
21-0000- 0- 9850.
21-0000- 0- 9850.

00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000

00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000

APPROVED BUDGET 07/ 22/ 2024
APPROVED BUDGET 07/22/ 2024

BEG NNI NG BALANCE

APPROVED BUDGET 07/ 22/ 2024

APPROVED BUDGET 07/ 22/ 2024

1ST QTR | NTREST 1PY@B. 53/ MD
1ST QT 2ND PY | NTREST@. 53% MD
1QTR 3RD PYT | NTREST @. 53% MD
QIR 1ST PYM | NTREST 3. 56% MRD
2 QTR | NTREST2 PYMNT@. 56% MRD

ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS

PAYABLE
PAYABLE
PAYABLE
PAYABLE
PAYABLE
PAYABLE
PAYABLE
PAYABLE

07/ 18/ 2024
07/ 22/ 2024
08/ 12/ 2024
09/ 12/ 2024
11/ 13/ 2024
11/ 26/ 2024
01/ 03/ 2025
01/10/ 2025

L. 00.

10 06/11/25 13:48 PAGE

0.00

0.00

1, 226, 703. 00
1, 226, 703. 00

1, 216, 703. 00

0.00
0. 00
0.00

0.00

10, 000. 00
10, 000. 00
10, 000. 00

0. 00
0.00
0.00

oeoooo

0.00

579.

2, 475.
1, 100.
164, 992.
10, 938.
495.

37, 200.
14, 390.

1, 152, 193.
1,152, 193.
1,152, 193.

0.
1, 226, 703.
1, 226, 703.
1, 226, 703.

0.
3,412.
4, 266.
2,172.
2, 820.
2,968.

15, 640.
15, 640.

Cooooo000o

2



FY24- 25 Bond Expenditures

9850
02/ 25/ 25
03/10/ 25
03/ 10/ 25
03/ 14/ 25

FUND

088 EL TEJON UNI FI ED J88266 DETAI LED GENERAL LEDGER GLD110 L. 00.10 06/11/25 13:48 PAGE 3
07/ 01/ 2024 TO 05/ 31/ 2025
FUND 121 BUI LDI NG FUND - BOND PROCEEDS
REFERENCE FD- RESC- Y- OBJT. SO- GOAL- FUNC- STE- T2- TY3- TYP4 TRANS DESC VENDOR WARRANT DEBI T CREDI T
EXPENDI TURES
AP- 022525 21-0000- 0- 9850. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 02/ 25/ 2025 9, 440. 95 0.00
TF- 250025 21-0000- 0- 5800. 00- 0000- 8500- 001- 00- 000- 8527 Bond T4 Correction 0.00 9, 440. 95
TF- 250025 21-0000- 0- 5800. 00- 0000- 8500- 001- 00- 000- 8537 Bond T4 Correction 9, 440. 95 0. 00
AP- 031425 21-0000- 0- 9850. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 03/ 14/ 2025 825. 00 0.00
TOTAL ACTIVITY 251,877.41 9, 440. 95
ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025 242,436. 46
21 TOTALS (ASSETS) 1, 197, 305. 38 271,907.57
TOTALS (ASSETS BALANCE) 925, 397. 81
TOTALS (LI ABI LI TIES) 706. 44 706. 44
TOTALS (LI ABILITIES BALANCE) 0.00
TOTALS (FUND BALANCE) 1, 226, 703. 00 1,162, 193. 47
TOTALS (FUND BAL BALANCE) 64, 509. 53
TOTALS ( ESTI MATED | NCOVE) 10, 000. 00 0. 00
TOTALS (ESTI MATED | NCOVE BALANCE) 10, 000. 00
TOTALS ( ESTI MATED EXPENSE) 0. 00 1, 226, 703. 00
TOTALS ( ESTI MATED EXPENSE BALANCE) 1, 226, 703. 00



088 EL TEJON UNI FI ED J88266 DETAI LED GENERAL LEDGER GLD110 L. 00.10 06/11/25 13:48 PAGE

FY24- 25 Bond Expenditures

FUND 121 BUI LDI NG FUND - BOND PROCEEDS

REFERENCE FD- RESC- Y- OBJT. SO GOAL- FUNC- STE- T2- TY3- TYP4

07/ 01/ 2024 TO 05/ 31/ 2025

4

11/ 19/ 24
01/ 23/ 25
02/ 20/ 25
03/ 07/ 25
04/ 30/ 25

| NTEREST
BALANCE FORWARD 07/ 01/ 2024
TF-971635 21-0000- 0-8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
TF-972484 21-0000- 0-8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
TF-972807 21-0000- 0-8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
TF-973080 21-0000- 0-8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
TF-973820 21-0000- 0-8660. 00- 0000- 0000- 000- 00- 000- 0000
TOTAL ACTIVITY
ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/2025

1ST QTR | NTREST 1PY@B. 53/ MD
1ST QT 2ND PY | NTREST@. 53% MD
1QTR 3RD PYT | NTREST @. 53% MD
QTR 1ST PYM | NTREST 3. 56% MRD
2 QIR | NTREST2 PYMNT@B. 56% MRD

DEBI T CREDI T
0.00 0
0.00 3,412
0.00 4,266
0. 00 2,172.
0.00 2, 820.
0.00 2,968.

0. 00 15, 640.
15, 640.



088 EL TEJON UNI FI ED

FY24- 25 Bond Expenditures

07/ 18/ 24
07/ 22/ 24
07/ 22/ 24
07/ 22/ 24
08/ 12/ 24
09/ 12/ 24
09/ 12/ 24
09/ 12/ 24
09/ 12/ 24
11/ 13/ 24
11/ 13/ 24
11/ 26/ 24
01/ 03/ 25
01/10/ 25
02/ 25/ 25
03/ 10/ 25
03/ 10/ 25
03/ 14/ 25

FUND

FUND 121

J88266

BUI LDI NG FUND -

DETAI LED GENERAL LEDGER

07/ 01/ 2024 TO 05/ 31/ 2025

BOND PROCEEDS

REFERENCE FD- RESC- Y- OBJT. SO GOAL- FUNC- STE- T2- TY3- TYP4

PROFES' L/ CONSULTG SVCS/ OP EXP
BALANCE FORWARD 07/ 01/ 2024

PV-250008
PV-250030
PV-250030
PV-250030
PV- 250067
PO- 250023
PO- 250023
PO 250024
PO- 250024
PV-250362
PO- 250154
PV-250397
PV-250489
PO- 250173
PV- 250712
TF- 250025
TF- 250025
PV- 250770
TOTAL ACTIVITY
ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/ 2025

21

21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.
21-0000- 0- 5800.

00- 0000- 8500- 002- 00- 000- 8532
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 8528
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 8528
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 8528
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 8528
00- 0000- 8500- 001- 00- 000- 8537
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 0000
00- 0000- 8500- 007- 00- 000- 8546
00- 0000- 8500- 002- 00- 000- 8543
00- 0000- 8500- 002- 00- 000- 8543
00- 0000- 8500- 001- 00- 000- 8527
00- 0000- 8500- 001- 00- 000- 8527
00- 0000- 8500- 001- 00- 000- 8537
00- 0000- 8500- 010- 00- 000- 0000

TOTALS (1 NCOVE)

TOTALS (1 NCOVE BALANCE)
TOTALS ( EXPENDI TURE)
TOTALS ( EXPENDI TURE BALANCE)

Mangi ni Associ ates |
THE BANK OF NEW YORK
THE BANK OF NEW YORK
THE BANK OF NEW YORK
THE BANK OF NEW YORK
XI'T Sol utions

XI'T Sol utions

XI'T Sol utions

XI'T Sol utions

Col onmbo Construction
XI'T Sol utions

Serban' s Background
FI NI SH LI NE CONSTRUC
Joe Ketterl Electric
Col ombo Construction
Bond T4 Correction
Bond T4 Correction
THE BANK OF NEW YORK

GLD110

3123

45036130
45036829
45036829
45036829
45041630
45050759
45050759
45050759
45050759
45070455
45070456
45076284
45085582
45087184
45102932

45107394

L. 00.

10 06/11/25 13:48 PAGE

1, 100.

0.00

114, 611.

59, 770.

0.00

8, 985.

1, 953.

495.

37, 200.

14, 390.

9, 440.

0. 00

9, 440.

825.
261, 266. 69

242, 436. 46

0.00

261, 266. 69
242,436. 46

18, 830.

15, 640.
15, 640.
18, 830.

5

80

23



088 EL TEJON UNI FI ED J88266 DETAI LED GENERAL LEDGER GLD110 L. 00.10 06/11/25 13:48 PAGE 6

FY24- 25 Bond Expenditures 07/ 01/ 2024 TO 05/ 31/ 2025
FUND 121 BUI LDI NG FUND - BOND PROCEEDS
DATE REFERENCE FD- RESC- Y- OBJT. SO- GOAL- FUNC- STE- T2- TY3- TYP4 TRANS DESC VENDOR WARRANT DEBI T CREDI T

TOTAL ASSETS (9000 - 9499 ) 925, 397. 81 0.00
TOTAL LIABILITIES ( 9500 - 9699 ) 0. 00 0. 00
TOTAL FUND BALANCE ( 9700 - 9759 ) ( 9760 - 9799 ) 64, 509. 53 0.00
ESTI MATED | NCOMVE ( 9810) 10, 000. 00 0. 00
ESTI MATED EXPENSE  ( 9820 ) 0.00 1, 226, 703. 00
TOTAL | NCOVE ( 8000 - 8999 ) ( 9840 ) 0. 00 15, 640. 80
TOTAL EXPENSES ( 1000 - 7999 ) ( 9850 ) 242,436. 46 0. 00



088 EL TEJON UNI FI ED CASH I N COUNTY TREASURY J88361 GLD300 L. 00.02 06/ 11/ 25 PACGE 0

Cash in County Bond 07/ 01/ 2024 TO 05/ 31/ 2025
Account classifications sel ected Fi el d ranges sel ected
FD- RESC- Y- OBJT. SO GOAL- FUNC- STE- T2- TY3- TYP4 FI RANGE

4. - - - - - - - -
6. - - - - - - -
8. - - - - - - e e
9. - - - - - - - -
10. - - - .- - - - -
Sort / Rollup on : FUND
Separation Option : No Separation of Restricted and UnRestricted
Extraction Type : Restricted and UnRestricted
G Transactions : Approved Only
Report prepared : 06/11/2025 14:33:01



088 EL TEJON UNI FI ED
Cash in County Bond

FUND 121 BUI LDI NG FUND - BOND PROCEEDS
DATE REFERENCE DESCRI PTI ON DEBI T
*BALANCE FORWARD 07/01/ 2024
07/ 01/ 2024 BB-000000 BEG NNI NG BALANCE 1,142,414.85
07/ 03/ 2024 AP-070324 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 07/ 03/ 2024
07/18/ 2024 AP-071824 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 07/18/ 2024
07/ 22/ 2024 AP-072224 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 07/ 22/ 2024
*MONTHLY ACTIVITY AS OF 07/22/ 2024 1,142,414.85
08/ 08/ 2024 TF-970410 1ST PY 4TH QTR | NTRST@3. 464 4,419. 33
08/ 12/ 2024 AP-081224 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 08/ 12/2024
*MONTHLY ACTIVITY AS OF 08/ 12/ 2024 4,419. 33
09/12/ 2024 AP-091224 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 09/ 12/ 2024
09/ 18/ 2024 TF-970895 2nd PY 4TH QIR | NTRST@3. 464 4,419. 33
09/ 20/ 2024 TF-970918 2nd PY 4TH QIR | NTRST@3. 464
09/ 20/ 2024 TF-970919 4TH QTR 2ND PYM I NT 3. 464% 4,419. 33
*MONTHLY ACTIVITY AS OF 09/ 20/ 2024 8, 838. 66
10/ 09/ 2024 TF-971161 23/24 4TH Q | NTRST 3RD PYMN 1, 646. 40
*MONTHLY ACTIVITY AS OF 10/ 09/ 2024 1, 646. 40
11/13/ 2024 AP-111324 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 11/13/2024
11/19/ 2024 TF-971635 1ST QIR I NTREST 1PY@. 53/ MD 3,412.79
11/ 26/ 2024 AP-112624 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 11/ 26/ 2024
*MONTHLY ACTIVITY AS OF 11/26/ 2024 3,412.79
01/ 03/ 2025 AP-010325 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 01/ 03/ 2025
01/10/ 2025 AP-011025 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 01/10/ 2025
01/23/2025 TF-972484 1ST QT 2ND PY | NTREST@. 53% 4, 266. 00
*MONTHLY ACTIVITY AS OF 01/23/2025 4, 266. 00
02/ 20/ 2025 TF-972807 1QIR 3RD PYT | NTREST @. 53% 2,172.55
02/ 25/ 2025 AP-022525 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 02/ 25/ 2025
*MONTHLY ACTIVITY AS OF 02/ 25/ 2025 2,172.55
03/07/2025 TF-973080 QTR 1ST PYM I NTREST 3. 56% 2,820.50
03/10/ 2025 TF-250025 Bond T4 Correction 9, 440. 95
03/10/ 2025 TF-250025 Bond T4 Correction
03/ 14/ 2025 AP-031425 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 03/ 14/ 2025
*MONTHLY ACTIVITY AS OF 03/14/2025 12, 261. 45
04/30/ 2025 TF-973820 2 QTR I NTREST2 PYMNT@. 56% 2,968. 96
*MONTHLY ACTIVITY AS OF 04/30/2025 2,968. 96
**TOTAL ACTIVITY 1,182, 400. 99

***ENDI NG BALANCE 05/ 31/2025

CASH I N COUNTY TREASURY
07/ 01/ 2024 TO 05/ 31/ 2025

706.
2,475.
3, 760.
1, 100.
1, 100.

164, 992.
4, 419.

169, 411.

0.
10, 938.

495.
11, 433.

37, 200.
14, 390.

51, 590.

9, 440.
9, 440.

9, 440.
825.
10, 265.
0.

257, 003.

43

33

76

00

60

95

95

00

18

J88361 GLD300

TOTAL DEBI

1,142, 414.
1,142, 414.
1,142, 414.
1,142, 414.

1, 146, 834.
1, 146, 834.

1, 146, 834.
1,151, 253.
1,151, 253.
1, 155, 672.

1,157, 319.

1,157, 319.
1, 160, 732.
1, 160, 732.

1,160, 732.
1,160, 732.
1,164, 998.

1,167, 170.
1,167, 170.

1,169, 991.
1,179, 432.

1,179, 432.

1,182, 400.

1, 182, 400.

TS

18
18

18
51
51
84

24

24
03
03

03
03
03

58
58

08

03

03

99

99

TOTAL CREDI TS

706.
1, 285.
3, 760.

3, 760.
4, 860.

169, 853.
169, 853.
174, 272.
174, 272.

174, 272.

185, 211.
185, 211.
185, 706.

222, 906.
237, 296.
237, 296.

237, 296.
246, 737.

246, 737.
256, 178.

257, 003.

257, 003.

257, 003.

68

28

28

28

28

28
23

23

18

18

18

L. 00.02 06/ 11/ 25 PACGE

1,142, 414.
1,141, 708.
1,141, 128.
1,138, 653.

1,143, 073.
1,141, 973.

976, 980.
981, 400.
976, 980.
981, 400.

983, 046.

972, 107.
975, 520.
975, 025.

937, 825.
923, 435.
927, 701.

929, 874.
920, 433.

923, 253.
923, 253.

922, 428.

925, 397.

925, 397.

56

96

75

75

75

30
35

85

85

81

81

1



1.

ELEL TEJON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
MEASURE D GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Meeting notes for June 16, 2025

Call to Order — The meeting was called to order by the Acting Chairperson, Anita Anderson, at

9:02am.

2.

Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum — Anita Anderson, Phil Wallace, and Guadalupe Martinez

arrived at 9:06am.

7.

Public Comment: No Public Comments

Approve and Adopt Minutes from meeting of June 26, 2024: Anita Anderson 1st, Phil Wallace
2nd motion — passed 3-0.

Update on Measure D Bond projects:

A. 2023-24 Prop 39 Bond Audit

B. Status of Current Projects

C. Funding/Expenditure Update (through 5/31/2025)

Committee items requested for next scheduled meeting: Create a report of completed projects
for the community. The next meeting is scheduled to take place in either May or June of 2026.

Adjournment: 9:18am.

[Note: As required pursuant to Education Code Section 15280, the minutes of this meeting will be posted on the
district’s internet website.]



	Citizen Bond Committee Meeting June 16 2025 Packet
	BOC Notice of Meeting & Agenda June 16, 2025.docx
	BOND_MEETING MINUTES_26JUN2024 (TO BE APPROVED NEXT MEETING).docx
	El Tejon Aduit Prop 39 2024
	Mgmt Rep Ltr El Tejon Prop 39
	FY24-25_CBOC-Model Annual Report-El Tejon USD.docx
	El Tejon Status of Current Project List_Updated_4.29.25.xlsx - Google Sheets
	24_25 bond expenditures
	cash in county bond

	Meeting Notes June 16, 2025.docx



